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To: Curtis LeBlanc
Cc: Florida Bar Complaints Division; Media Contacts
From: Rogerio Scotton – Concerned Citizen and Paralegal Support
Date: July 11 2025
 
Mr. LeBlanc,
 
Attached please find the formal court filings prepared by Mr. Marcio Sousa Sales and
submitted to the court today, as well as a forthcoming Florida Bar complaint and related public
communications now shared with multiple media outlets.
 
Let me be clear, since your actions thus far demonstrate either gross negligence or willful
misconduct. You were already provided a thorough explanation of the judicial history in this
matter. The prior judgment was entered against the wrong party – a man who neither owned
nor operated the LLC involved. And yet, you now follow in the footsteps of the previous
attorney, Mr. Brandon Gibson, who is already under investigation for similar behavior, by
submitting an equally reckless and deceptive motion for sanctions.
 
Your § 57.105 Safe Harbor letter not only misrepresents the procedural posture of the case,
but boldly attempts to intimidate Mr. Sales into withdrawing a meritorious constitutional claim
for damages. You claim his current suit is merely a rehash of a past case. That is demonstrably
false. The current suit is an entirely new action against your client for initiating a defective
lawsuit, suing the wrong party, and triggering a chain of due process violations which resulted
in profound financial and reputational harm.
 
Let me remind you: the judgment entered in case 2023SC011007 was obtained not only
against the wrong party, but during a trial in which Mr. Marcio Sousa Sales was not the person
who appeared, nor the one involved with the garage. The individual who was trialed was his
son, and the presiding judge even admitted on record that he held the father liable “because he
received payments on behalf of the LLC.” That judicial statement alone confirms a blatant
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IN THE CIRCUIT OF THE 15TH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT IN AND 


FOR PALM BEACH COUTY, FLORIDA 


(DIVISION: AG) 


 


 


MARCIO SOUSA SALES,  


                                Plaintiff, 


                                                       CASE NO: 2025CA005676 


                      vs.  


 


ANTONIO DE ANDRADE,  


                           Defendant,  


___________________________/  


 


OBJECTION TO DEFENDANT’S §57.105 SAFE 


HARBOR LETTER AND ANTICIPATED MOTION 


FOR SANCTION INTRODUCTION 


 
 
 


COMES NOW, the Plaintiff, MARCIO SOUSA SALES, pro se, and respectfully 


objects to Defendant’s July 3, 2025, “Notice of §57.105 Safe-Harbor” letter and any 


forthcoming motion for sanctions, and in support states as follows: 
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I. INTRODUCTION 


Defendant’s counsel has delivered a safe-harbor letter alleging Plaintiff’s claims are 


frivolous and threatening a motion for sanctions under Fla. Stat. §57.105. Plaintiff 


asserts that this threat is procedurally improper, legally baseless, and part of a 


continuing pattern of procedural abuse by Defendant’s legal representatives. The 


letter is a thinly veiled attempt to harass, intimidate, and silence a pro se litigant. 


Florida courts have repeatedly confirmed that §57.105 should only be applied in 


rare and extreme cases where a claim is completely devoid of legal or factual merit. 


That is not the case here. The Plaintiff’s claims arise from serious violations of due 


process and a tainted judgment where the wrong individual was sued, the wrong 


party was tried, and judicial protections were ignored. 


 


II. RELEVANT BACKGROUND: THE WRONG PARTY WAS 


TRIED 


In the underlying case (Palm Beach County Small Claims Case No. 50-2023-SC-


011007), Defendant Antonio de Andrade initiated suit against Marcio Sousa 


Sales. However, during court proceedings, it was Marcio's son who appeared and 


was questioned, yet the final judgment was entered against Marcio Sousa Sales,  
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(the father). This grave procedural error resulted in a judgment against someone 


who was never afforded a proper opportunity to defend himself, violating 


Marcio Sousa Sales’ constitutional due process rights. 


Despite being told that Marcio Sousa sales was not involved with the LLC that 


performed the vehicle work, the defendant and the court allowed this misapplication 


to persist. This forms the factual foundation of Plaintiff’s current lawsuit alleging 


malicious prosecution, abuse of process, and constitutional violations. These 


claims are not only grounded in existing Florida law but also supported by well-


established tort doctrines and relevant appellate precedent. 


 


III. LEGAL STANDARD UNDER §57.105 


Florida Statutes §57.105 allows for sanctions only when: 


• A claim is completely without factual or legal support, and 


• The party knew or should have known it lacked such merit. 


Florida courts have made it clear that §57.105 is an extraordinary remedy, not 


a tool for routine litigation or a method to pressure opposing parties. 


• Weatherby Assocs., Inc. v. Ballack, 783 So. 2d 1138 (Fla. 4th DCA 2001): 


Sanctions are appropriate only when there is a total absence of any 


justiciable issue of law or fact. 
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• Visoly v. Security Pac. Credit Corp., 768 So. 2d 482 (Fla. 3d DCA 2000): 


Repeated abusive tactics and misuse of the system may warrant sanctions, but 


only in extreme cases. 


• Boca Burger, Inc. v. Forum, 912 So. 2d 561 (Fla. 4th DCA 2005): 


Emphasized that arguments in good faith for a change in law are not 


sanctionable under §57.105. 


• Mason v. Highlands Cty. Bd. of Cty. Comm’rs, 817 So. 2d 922 (Fla. 2d DCA 


2002): Courts must find “competent substantial evidence” of frivolousness 


before imposing sanctions. 


• Suarez v. Bank of N.Y. Mellon, 325 So. 3d 205 (Fla. 2d DCA 2021): 


§57.105 must not be used as an “initial strike” in litigation; proper process is 


motion to dismiss. 


 


IV. PLAINTIFF’S CLAIMS ARE LEGITIMATE 


Plaintiff alleges, among other things: 


• He was not the proper party sued in the original case; 


• The actual proceedings involved someone else entirely (his son); 


• The judgment was entered without a fair trial or defense opportunity; 


• Defense counsel misused the court process, including: 
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o Hearings scheduled without notice; 


o Orders uploaded by attorneys who never appeared properly; 


o Actions without any valid notice of appearance on file; 


o Threats made to third parties assisting Plaintiff. 


Each of these facts contributes to well-recognized causes of action under Florida 


law, including: 


• Malicious Prosecution 


• Abuse of Process 


• Intentional Infliction of Emotional Distress 


• Due Process Violations under color of law 


These are not novel or outlandish claims. At minimum, they are colorable, and 


thus §57.105 sanctions are categorically inappropriate. 


 


V. PATTERN OF ABUSE AND BAD FAITH 


The same §57.105 threat was previously employed by prior counsel Brandon 


Gibson, who: 
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• Filed motions for sanctions immediately instead of seeking adjudication on 


the merits; 


• Failed to file a proper notice of appearance; 


• Appeared in court without authority; 


• Threatened Plaintiff’s assistants with sanctions; 


•  Upload orders under false procedural grounds. 


When these issues were exposed, Defendant’s case was abandoned, and sanctions 


efforts quietly dropped. The current July 3, 2025 safe-harbor letter is a 


repackaged version of those same discredited tactics. 


As previously communicated to Defendant and his counsel in detailed 


correspondence sent prior to the initiation of this lawsuit (see Exhibits B and C), 


Plaintiff made every effort to resolve this dispute without resorting to litigation. 


These communications outlined the factual and legal basis for Plaintiff’s claims and 


sought accountability for the misconduct now at issue. 


 


VI. REQUEST FOR RELIEF 


The plaintiff respectfully asks this Court to: 


1. Deny any future §57.105 motion filed by Defendant, as there is no legal basis 


or evidence of frivolity; 
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2. Recognize this pattern as a tactical abuse of the statute meant to intimidate 


a pro se litigant; 


3. Preserve Plaintiff’s right to be heard fairly on the merits; 


4. Caution Defendant’s counsel against using §57.105 as a tool of harassment; 


5. Consider, if necessary, its own authority to sanction improper conduct under 


the inherent powers of the Court or Fla. Stat. §57.105(6). 


 


VII. CONCLUSION 


Section 57.105 was never meant to silence aggrieved individuals who pursue justice 


in good faith. The Plaintiff has presented serious and plausible claims arising from 


documented procedural misconduct. The sanctions threat must be seen for what it is 


– a strategic ploy to avoid scrutiny. 


WHEREFORE, Plaintiff respectfully asks the Court to reject any §57.105 sanctions 


motion filed by Defendant and allow this matter to proceed on the merits. 


 


Respectfully Submitted, 


Marcio Sousa Sales 


160 W Camino Real # 102 


Boca Raton, FL 33432 


(786) 588-1202 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 


I hereby certify that a true and correct copy of the OBJECTION TO 


DEFENDANT’S §57.105 SAFE HARBOR LETTER AND ANTICIPATED 


MOTION FOR SANCTION INTRODUCTION was served on Antonio de Andrade, 


at his e-mail tjlmarble@yahoo.com as well to his currently attorney, Morris Shields 


LeBlanc at curtis@morrisshieldsleblanc.com on July 11 2025. 


___________________________ 


Marcio Sousa Sales 


160 W Camino Real # 102 


Boca Raton, FL 33432 


(786) 588-1202



mailto:curtis@morrisshieldsleblanc.com





EXHIBIT A
Defendant’s §57.105 Safe-Harbor Letter (dated July 3, 2025)"























EXHIBIT B


Informational Email Sent to Defendant’s Counsel by Peter Aldo on Behalf of Plaintiff


On or about 07/02/2025, Peter Aldo, a multilingual assistant who translated and 
forwarded the Plaintiff’s factual concerns, sent an email to Defendant’s attorney 
explaining that Marcio Sousa Sales was not the proper party in the small claims lawsuit 
brought by Antonio De Andrade. The email outlined the Plaintiff’s objection to the 
underlying judgment and requested acknowledgment of the legal error. It was clearly 
stated that Peter was not acting as an attorney or authorized representative, but simply 
facilitating communication as a concerned citizen assisting a pro se litigant.


– Letter from Rogerio Scotton to Defense Counsel


On or about July 3 2025, Rogerio Scotton—an independent citizen advocate affiliated 
with a legal assistance service known as Legal Help 4 You—sent a letter to Defendant’s 
counsel expressing concern regarding the continued pursuit of Marcio Sousa Sales in 
litigation despite clear evidence that the underlying judgment was improper. The letter 
explicitly clarified that neither Scotton nor his organization legally represents Mr. Sales, 
but that they are closely monitoring the matter as engaged members of the public 
advocating for due process and fairness for pro se litigants. The correspondence sought 
transparency and good faith resolution prior to further litigation.







From: Roger Scotton
To: Legal Help LLC; curtis@morrisshieldsleblanc.com
Cc: Marcio Sales; jgrover@legalhelp.com
Subject: Case No. 2025CA005676 – Public Awareness & Amicus Motion in Sales v. Andrade – Request for Ethical Conduct


Moving Forward
Date: Thursday, July 3, 2025 10:26:17 AM
Attachments: image002.png


Dear Mr. LeBlanc,


My name is Rogerio Scotton. I am the founder of Legal Help 4 You, a public-facing
legal support platform that assists individuals in navigating their rights, especially
those who are pro se or face economic challenges in our complex judicial system.


I am reaching out in my individual and public capacity — not as legal counsel for Mr.
Marcio Sousa Sales, but as someone who has occasionally assisted him by translating
documents, formatting filings, and helping ensure that his voice is heard in
accordance with his own wishes. All decisions, strategies, and filings are Mr. Sales’s
alone. We are not his legal representatives, nor do we practice law on his behalf.


This morning, I read your motion for extension of time in the above-captioned case. It
immediately drew the attention of multiple members of our team, including Mr. Aldo,
as well as the broader community following this matter. Unfortunately, the motion is
troubling in its tone and appears to repeat the same prejudicial tactics previously
employed by your client’s prior attorneys — tactics which resulted in serious due
process violations against Mr. Sales, as reflected in two open appeals.


As a matter of public accountability, we have published a blog article titled:
“When Small Law Firms Sell Out Justice: The War Against Pro Se Litigants Continues”
This article outlines our concerns with your motion and the ongoing pattern of
procedural abuse surrounding this litigation. You may view it at:
 https://legalhelp4y.com/legal-h4y-blog/f/when-small-law-firms-sell-out-justice


Let me be very clear: this is not a threat. I have no interest in harassment or
intimidation. However, I do believe in transparency — and that includes putting
attorneys, judges, and legal strategies under the microscope of public scrutiny when
patterns of abuse arise.


You are, of course, free to represent whomever you choose. I understand that in
today’s economic climate, few small firms can turn away a paying client. But I also
believe that attorneys have a duty to inform their clients when they are wrong —
legally, factually, and ethically — especially when their actions are infringing on
another citizen’s constitutional rights. Mr. Andrade has already filed one lawsuit
against the wrong party, bypassing Florida law on LLC representation, proper service,
and jurisdiction. That judgment is now under appellate review.


More disturbing, in the last suit, an attorney (Mr. Gibson) appeared without filing a
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notice of appearance, filed pleadings despite not being the attorney of record, and
actively misled the court. That misconduct is now the subject of multiple Florida Bar
complaints and is being reviewed for potential civil liability under 42 U.S.C. § 1983.


If the current course continues, it is inevitable that this case will evolve into a federal
matter — not simply for constitutional violations, but potentially for attorney
misconduct and the abuse of process. That includes the conduct of those who
knowingly continue on a path that is legally untenable.


Let me also say this: I am not an outsider to this system. While my formal law degree
was completed recently in Brazil, I have spent over a decade studying U.S. federal
litigation, including defending myself in a federal case that lasted over two years in
pretrial, five weeks in jury trial, and continued through federal appeals today. That
experience — as brutal and unjust as it often was — forged something in me. I now
see that everything I endured was part of a divine preparation.


God was refining me under fire, forging in me not a victim, but a vessel — someone
meant to fight not just for myself, but for others who have no voice. What emerged is
the man I am today: not a licensed attorney (yet), but a justice-bearer — someone
who believes deeply that no one is above the law, no firm is too small to be held
accountable, and no court system is too sacred to be scrutinized.


Our platform, Legal Help 4 You, exists not to attack, but to illuminate. The microscope
is on. The public is watching. And while we do not represent Mr. Sales, we will
continue to follow this case closely, speak publicly about patterns of injustice, and
take action where appropriate — legally and constitutionally.


I invite you to reflect not only on the tactical value of your filings, but the ethical
legacy they leave behind. There is still time to choose the high road. Justice demands
no less.


Sincerely,


Roger Scotton-Co Owner/Director
Legal Help 4 You
160 Camino real #102
Boca Raton, FL 33432
rs@legalhelp4y.com
+1 (786) 588-1202
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+55 (21) 97249-3440
Nothing in this message should be interpreted as a digital or electronic signature that can
be used to form, execute, document, agree to, enter into, accept or authenticate a
contract or other legal document. This electronic communication, and any files included
in this communication, may contain confidential information that is legally privileged and
confidential. If you are not the intended recipient, or a person responsible for delivering it
to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying,
distribution, or use of any of the information contained in or attached to this
transmission is STRICTLY PROHIBITED. If you have received this in error, please
immediately notify us by return e-mail, fax and/or telephone and destroy this original
transmission and its attachments without reading or saving in any manner. Thank you.


From: Legal Help LLC <info@legalhelp4y.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, July 2, 2025 10:57 PM
To: curtis@morrisshieldsleblanc.com
Cc: Marcio Sales <unionmoving@hotmail.com>; Roger Scotton <rs@legalhelp4y.com>;
jgrover@legalhelp.com
Subject: Re: Case No. 2025CA005676 – Formal Notice Regarding Procedural Conduct and
Constitutional Safeguards


Marcio Sousa Sales
22187 Aquila Street
Boca Raton, FL 33428


July 2 2025


Curtis LeBlanc, Esq.
Morris Shields LeBlanc
685 Royal Palm Beach Blvd., Suite 205
Royal Palm Beach, FL 33411
Email: curtis@morrisshieldsleblanc.com


Dear Mr. LeBlanc,


I am writing to serve you—professionally and directly—with a formal notice regarding
your recent appearance on behalf of Mr. Antonio de Andrade in the above-referenced
case.


Your filing on July 1, 2025, styled as a Motion for Extension of Time, contains statements
which I must immediately challenge as procedurally improper and constitutionally
prejudicial. While you ostensibly seek time to evaluate the complaint, you have
simultaneously entered derogatory and unfounded assertions into the judicial record—
assertions which prejudge the case, lack legal foundation, and encroach upon my rights
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as a pro se litigant.


Let me be unequivocal: I will not tolerate the continuation of the procedural misconduct
that has already plagued this dispute. If you believe you can perpetuate the same “suja
tática” (dirty tactics) previously engaged in by your client’s former attorneys—
particularly those employed by the Keller & Gibson firm—you are mistaken. This matter
has evolved beyond civil controversy; it now concerns the preservation of fundamental
rights under Article I, §9 of the Florida Constitution and the Due Process Clause of the
Fourteenth Amendment.


Background and Notice of Violations
As you are now representing Mr. Andrade, it is your duty—both ethically and legally—to
understand the factual and procedural backdrop of this litigation. Let me summarize for
clarity:


Your client initiated a previous lawsuit (Palm Beach Case No. 50-2023-SC-011007)
involving a dispute over a car repair, naming me personally, rather than my son’s LLC,
which operated the repair facility.


Despite Florida law expressly prohibiting this, your client never served the registered
agent of the LLC and instead misidentified me as the liable party.


See Fla. Stat. § 605.0113 and § 48.062, which govern proper service and bar direct
actions against individual LLC members.


Your client’s failure to comply with these statutes resulted in a void judgment against the
wrong party.


At trial, my son appeared on behalf of the business, yet no objection was raised by Mr.
Andrade—despite his full knowledge that the wrong party had been named. It was only
after judgment that I received a demand to file a financial affidavit, which alerted us to
the underlying error.


In a post-trial hearing before Judge Reginald in Delray, both the Court and your client
were placed on notice of the mistake. In response, your client improperly sought to
modify the judgment to add both me and my son. I objected. The judge compelled me to
comply with the financial order, which I have since appealed (4DCA Case No. 4D2024-
3229).







Following the dismissal without prejudice of that case, I filed the present lawsuit.
Unfortunately, your firm appears poised to continue the pattern of improper filings,
obfuscation, and judicial manipulation.


Ethical and Legal Responsibilities
While I appreciate the realities of small firm practice and the need to accept paying
clients, you are nonetheless bound by professional conduct rules, including the duty of
candor to the tribunal and the obligation not to mislead the court or subvert justice.


As defined by Black’s Law Dictionary, “abuse of process” is the improper use of the legal
system to achieve an objective not legally attainable—a tortious act when done
knowingly.


You are now on notice that continuing this pattern may expose both yourself and your
client to civil rights liability under 42 U.S.C. § 1983, as well as claims for abuse of
process, malicious prosecution, and denial of constitutional access to the courts.


Procedural Conduct and Future Expectations
Your motion for extension already contains material violations—notably:


Premature legal conclusions about the complaint;


Factual misrepresentations without evidentiary foundation;


Language intended to prejudice a pro se litigant’s standing.


Should this conduct continue, I will:


File a formal Motion to Strike and Request for Judicial Admonition;


Pursue federal redress under Section 1983 for ongoing violations of due process;


Initiate formal Florida Bar complaints and request professional sanctions.


This is not a threat—it is a lawful, protected notice of legal rights and remedies available
under both state and federal law. I am a citizen of the United States. I have endured
years of injustice, and I will no longer allow licensed professionals to weaponize
procedure against me simply because I do not carry a bar number.







Final Advisory
I urge you to read this letter not as a provocation, but as a declaration: your client is
factually and legally incorrect, and it is your duty as counsel to advise him of that reality.
The legal process must never be manipulated as a tool for enrichment or retaliation.
Should you persist on this path, I am fully prepared to elevate this matter—to the federal
bench, the Eleventh Circuit, or the Supreme Court if necessary.


I remain committed to resolving this matter within the bounds of law and with
procedural dignity. But I will not retreat from defending my rights, my name, and my
standing before the court.


Respectfully,
Marcio sales


Nota de Autorização:
Este e-mail, incluindo a carta anexa, foi redigido em inglês, traduzido para o
português, e enviado com autorização expressa, plena e inequívoca do Sr. Marcio
Sousa Sales, autor da ação judicial em referência. A Legal Help 4 You apenas
prestou apoio técnico na formatação, tradução e envio, conforme orientação direta
do Sr. Marcio. Todas as declarações refletem fielmente sua posição legal e foram
revisadas e aprovadas por ele antes do envio.


Peter Aldo-Legal Paralegal
160 W Camino Real # 102
Boca Raton, Florida 33432
info@legalhelp4y.com
(786) 588-1202
Nothing in this message should be interpreted as a digital or electronic signature that can
be used to form, execute, document, agree to, enter into, accept or authenticate a
contract or other legal document. This electronic communication, and any files included
in this communication, may contain confidential information that is legally privileged and
confidential. If you are not the intended recipient, or a person responsible for delivering it
to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying,
distribution, or use of any of the information contained in or attached to this
transmission is STRICTLY PROHIBITED. If you have received this in error, please
immediately notify us by return e-mail, fax and/or telephone and destroy this original
transmission and its attachments without reading or saving in any manner. Thank you.
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EXHIBIT C
Email Sent by Rogerio Scotton Outlining Attorney Misconduct and Unauthorized 
Participation
This exhibit is an email sent by Rogerio Scotton, a private citizen and founder of 
Legal Help 4 You, to Defendant’s counsel. The email outlines a serious concern 
regarding prior counsel—attorney Brandon J. Gibson, Esq. —who filed a §57.105 
sanctions motion and participated in a hearing on behalf of Defendant Antonio 
De Andrade without having filed a formal Notice of Appearance, as required 
under Florida Rule of Judicial Administration 2.505(e).


The email explicitly states that Mr. Scotton is not acting as legal counsel for 
Plaintiff Marcio Sousa Sales, but rather documenting irregularities and asserting 
citizen oversight in light of due process concerns. The communication was part of 
a broader effort to document misconduct and provide notice that the Plaintiff’s 
rights were being undermined through procedural manipulation.







From: Brandon Gibson
To: Legal Help LLC; Maribel Rosado; Marcio Sales
Cc: Seth Keller; tjlmarble@yaoo.com
Subject: Re: Notice Regarding Plaintiff’s Availability and Ongoing Procedural Concerns
Date: Friday, June 20, 2025 1:32:26 PM
Attachments: Outlook-nomehowz.png


Good Morning, 


We understand that Mr. Sales is out of state until July 14, 2025.  The following dates are
available after his return:


7/17 at 8:45am
7/22 at 8:45am
7/29 at 8:45am
7/30 at 8:45am
7/31 at 8:45am


Please let us know which dates work for Mr. Sales and we will schedule accordingly.  If
you have any questions please let us know.


Regards,


Brandon J. Gibson, Esq. 


KellerGibson, PLLC
3800 Inverary Blvd., Suite 400D
Lauderhill, FL 33319 
Phone: 954-237-8093
Fax: 954-637-6855
 http://www.kellergibson.com


This e-mail message may contain confidential or legally privileged information and is intended only for the use of the intended
recipient(s). Any unauthorized disclosure, dissemination, distribution, copying or the taking of any action in reliance on the information
herein is prohibited. E-mails are not secure and cannot be guaranteed to be error free as they can be intercepted, amended, or contain
viruses. Anyone who communicates with us by e-mail is deemed to have accepted these risks. KellerGibson, PLLC is not responsible for
errors or omissions in this message and denies any responsibility for any damage arising from the use of e-mail. Any opinion and other
statement contained in this message and any attachment are solely those of the author and do not necessarily represent those of the
company.
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From: Legal Help LLC <info@legalhelp4y.com>
Sent: Thursday, June 5, 2025 10:23 PM
To: Maribel Rosado <mari@kellergibson.com>; Marcio Sales <unionmoving@hotmail.com>
Cc: Seth Keller <seth@kellergibson.com>; Brandon Gibson <bgibson@kellergibson.com>;
tjlmarble@yaoo.com <tjlmarble@yaoo.com>
Subject: Notice Regarding Plaintiff’s Availability and Ongoing Procedural Concerns


Dear Mr. Keller,


This email serves to place you on formal notice that Mr. Marcio Sousa Sales is currently
traveling out of state and will not return to his residence until July 14, 2025. As such, any
attempt to unilaterally schedule or conduct hearings during this period would knowingly
interfere with his right to meaningfully participate in these proceedings.


Additionally, it is important to reiterate that your continued efforts to press forward with
motions—including your renewed request for sanctions—occur after this case has been
dismissed and while a notice of appeal is pending. Your actions, especially in attempting
to revive a § 57.105 motion that was previously withdrawn and refile it after dismissal,
appear to be both procedurally improper and legally void of jurisdiction under well-
established Florida law.


All of these tactics are being documented in the court record and will be properly
addressed with the appropriate legal and regulatory bodies in due course. This includes
—but is not limited to—filings with the appellate court, formal bar complaints, and other
procedural remedies as needed.


We trust that you will proceed with the professional integrity expected of all officers of
the court and refrain from any further actions that may infringe upon Mr. Sales’s due
process rights or violate applicable rules of procedure during the pendency of his
appeal.


Sincerely,
Marcio Sousa sales, Pro se







Peter Aldo-Legal Paralegal
160 W Camino Real # 102
Boca Raton, Florida 33432
info@legalhelp4y.com
(786) 588-1202
Nothing in this message should be interpreted as a digital or electronic signature that can
be used to form, execute, document, agree to, enter into, accept or authenticate a
contract or other legal document. This electronic communication, and any files included
in this communication, may contain confidential information that is legally privileged and
confidential. If you are not the intended recipient, or a person responsible for delivering it
to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying,
distribution, or use of any of the information contained in or attached to this
transmission is STRICTLY PROHIBITED. If you have received this in error, please
immediately notify us by return e-mail, fax and/or telephone and destroy this original
transmission and its attachments without reading or saving in any manner. Thank you.


From: Maribel Rosado <mari@kellergibson.com> 
Sent: Thursday, June 5, 2025 7:50 PM
To: Legal Help LLC <info@legalhelp4y.com>; Marcio Sales <unionmoving@hotmail.com>
Cc: Seth Keller <seth@kellergibson.com>; Brandon Gibson <bgibson@kellergibson.com>
Subject: Hearing Request: Mauricio Sousa Sales v. Antonio De Andrade


Good afternoon,


Our office would like to schedule a brief 5-minute hearing on the attached motion.
Please advise as to your availability on June 18th at 8:45 AM.


If that date does not work for you, kindly let us know your availability for any of the
following alternative dates:


June 24 at 8:45 am


June 26 at 8:45 am


July 1 at 8:45 am


July 2 at 8:45 am


We appreciate your prompt response.



mailto:info@legalhelp4y.com





Best regards,


Maribel Rosado







EXHIBIT D
Prior Motion to Strike Improper Post-Dismissal Filings and Evidence of Attorney Misconduct
This exhibit consists of a previously filed and duly served Amended Motion to Strike Improper 
Post-Dismissal Filings, dated July 26, 2025, in Case No. 50-2025-CA-000969-XXXA-MB, where 
Plaintiff Marcio Sousa Sales moved the Court to strike all post-dismissal activity, bar further 
litigation under the closed case number, and formally place the Court and opposing counsel on 
notice of attorney misconduct and constitutional violations.


Specifically, this motion outlines:


That the prior lawsuit was dismissed without prejudice on May 14, 2025, after a hearing for which 
no lawful order of scheduling was ever entered;


That the opposing attorney (Brandon J. Gibson) appeared in court, filed motions, and uploaded 
final orders without ever filing a Notice of Appearance, in violation of Fla. R. Jud. Admin. 
2.505(e);


That said attorney filed a post-dismissal motion for sanctions under Fla. Stat. § 57.105, even 
though an appeal was pending at the Fourth District Court of Appeal (4D2025-1600), thereby 
stripping the trial court of jurisdiction;


That the Court’s dismissal order falsely claimed it had reviewed Plaintiff’s motions and 
objections, despite the hearing record containing an admission by defense counsel that “the Court 
would not rule on them”;


That these actions collectively constituted fraud upon the Court, a violation of Marcio Sousa 
Sales’s due process rights, and warranted escalation to federal court under 42 U.S.C. § 1983.


The attached motion was instrumental in causing the Defendant’s attorneys to withdraw from 
further filings, and documents a pattern of abuse, now being revived by new counsel through a 
renewed § 57.105 threat based on the same wrongful litigation theory.


Plaintiff incorporates this Exhibit D to show that:


The § 57.105 sanctions threat is not new;


Prior counsel engaged in similar misconduct that was challenged and abandoned after being 
exposed;


This ongoing harassment is part of a pattern to silence and punish the Plaintiff for exposing the 
original error of suing the wrong party in the first place.
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Marcio Sousa Sales 


Plaintiff, Pro Se 


160 W Camino Real, 102 


Boca Raton, FL 33432 


Phone Number: (786) 588-1202
 Email Address: info@legalhelp4y.com 


IN THE CIRCUIT OF THE 15TH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT IN AND 


FOR PALM BEACH COUTY, FLORIDA 


        MARCIO SOUSA SALES, 


Plaintiff(s), 


vs. 


 ANTONIO DE ANDRADE, 


      Defendant(s). 


) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 


))


Case No.: 50-2025-CA-000969-XXXA-MB 


AMENDED MOTION TO STRIKE 


IMPROPER POST-DISMISSAL FILINGS, 


BAR FURTHER ACTION IN CLOSED 


CASE, AND NOTICE OF FEDERAL 


ESCALATION AND JUDICIAL 


MISCONDUCT 


COMES NOW, Marcio Sousa Sales, pro se, and respectfully submits this amended 


emergency motion to strike post-dismissal filings, bar further litigation activity in a 


closed case, and place the Court and opposing counsel on formal notice of 


constitutional violations, attorney misconduct, and anticipated federal escalation under 


42 U.S.C. § 1983. 
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I. CASE DISMISSED WITHOUT PREJUDICE ON MAY 14, 2025 


 


On May 14, 2025, Judge Scott dismissed this matter without prejudice on grounds that 


Plaintiff allegedly failed to appear at a hearing. However, no lawful order setting said 


hearing was ever entered by the Court. The plaintiff repeatedly objected to the motion 


to dismiss and filed more than a dozen responsive pleadings and supplemental 


memoranda. None were ever addressed or ruled upon. Dismissal was executed solely 


based on Plaintiff’s alleged absence from a non-lawfully scheduled hearing. 


 


 


II. NOTICE OF APPEAL FILED AND TRIAL COURT 


JURISDICTION DIVESTED 


 


A timely notice of appeal has been filed under Fourth District Court of Appeal Case 


No. 4D2025-1600. Once an appeal is perfected, the trial court is divested of jurisdiction 


to entertain post-dismissal motions or conduct further proceedings in the case, 


including motions for sanctions. See Olson v. Olson, 95 So. 3d 435 (Fla. 4th DCA 


2012); Goter v. Brown, 682 So. 2d 155 (Fla. 4th DCA 1996). 
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III. DEFENDANT FILED MOTIONS FOR SANCTIONS POST-


DISMISSAL 


 


Despite the above, defense counsel Brandon J. Gibson filed a motion for § 57.105 


sanctions in June 2025—more than a month after the case was dismissed. This filing is 


both improper and legally void. Moreover, the trial court has no jurisdiction to hear 


such a motion while an appeal is pending. Any such hearing would constitute judicial 


overreach and a violation of the appellate process. 


 


IV. JUDICIAL MISCONDUCT: MOTIONS IGNORED, DUE 


PROCESS DENIED 


 


More than twelve motions and objections filed by Plaintiff were never addressed by 


the Court. The signed dismissal order falsely claims that the Court “reviewed the 


papers filed in this case,” which contradicts the statement made on record by attorney 


Gibson, who admitted: “The Court would not rule on those objections.” 


 


This misrepresentation constitutes judicial misconduct and deliberate concealment of 


procedural violations. Judicial statements of review are contradicted by both attorney 


statements and the absence of any docketed rulings. This implicates Rule 2.330, Florida 


Rules of Judicial Administration, and undermines confidence in the judicial process. 
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V. FRAUD UPON THE COURT AND VIOLATIONS OF 


PLAINTIFF’S RIGHTS 


 


The cumulative conduct—unauthorized hearings, refusal to rule on pleadings, 


misrepresentation of docket activity—constitutes fraud upon the court, a violation of 


due process under the Fourteenth Amendment, and a deprivation of rights actionable 


under 42 U.S.C. § 1983. See Hazel-Atlas Glass Co. v. Hartford-Empire Co., 322 U.S. 


238 (1944); Napoli v. Sever, 682 So. 2d 597 (Fla. 2d DCA 1996). 


 


 


VI. PLAINTIFF RETAINS RIGHT TO REFILE: NEW CASE 


PENDING 


 


Plaintiff has since filed a new and separate civil action against Defendant in Palm 


Beach County under Case No. 50-2025-CA-005676. This renders all further activity 


under this closed case number unnecessary, improper, and potentially prejudicial. The 


attempt to litigate sanctions in a terminated action is a procedural nullity. See Pino v. 


Bank of New York, 76 So. 3d 927 (Fla. 2011). 
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VII. UNAUTHORIZED ATTORNEY PARTICIPATION AND 


FRAUD ON THE COURT 


 


It is now confirmed and indisputable that attorney Brandon J. Gibson, Esq., who signed 


and filed numerous pleadings, conducted the May 14, 2025, Zoom hearing, and 


requested dismissal on behalf of Defendant Antonio de Andrade, never filed a formal 


Notice of Appearance as required by Fla. R. Jud. Admin. 2.505(e)(1). Only attorney 


Seth R. Keller is listed in the court record as counsel of record for Mr. de Andrade. 


 


All appearances, filings, and oral arguments by Mr. Gibson were unauthorized and 


constitute unauthorized practice under Florida Bar Rule 4-5.5 and cases such as Estate 


of Stisser v. Busch, 928 So. 2d 391 (Fla. 2d DCA 2006) and Fischman v. Fischman, 


727 So. 2d 1097 (Fla. 4th DCA 1999). The plaintiff was forced to respond to motions 


filed by a person who, as a matter of court record, had no lawful standing to act as 


attorney in the matter. 


 


VIII. MISREPRESENTATIONS TO THE COURT AND APPEALS 


PREJUDICE 


 


During the hearing, Mr. Gibson falsely stated that the Court would not rule on 


Plaintiff’s objections. Minutes later, the Court signed an order stating it had reviewed 


all papers filed in the case. These two positions cannot coexist. Further, Mr. Gibson 
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was instructed to “upload an order,” which he did—containing factual 


misrepresentations and legal conclusions, falsely suggesting that dismissal was based 


on review of pleadings and merits. 


 


Such conduct misleads the appellate court, prejudices Plaintiff’s rights, and constitutes 


both ethical and judicial misconduct. See Ruiz v. State, 857 So. 2d 915 (Fla. 5th DCA 


2003); Cox v. Burke, 706 So. 2d 43 (Fla. 5th DCA 1998). 


 


 


IX. NO COURT ORDER EVER SCHEDULING THE HEARING 


 


Review of the docket confirms that no order was ever issued scheduling the May 14, 


2025 hearing. Mr. Gibson submitted filings with hearing dates, Zoom credentials, and 


instructions—yet no such order was signed or docketed. A hearing not properly ordered 


cannot be used to dismiss a case. This denied Plaintiff’s right to notice and participation 


in violation of Fla. R. Civ. P. 1.090 and constitutional due process. 


 


That the Court allowed a non-listed attorney to organize and conduct a hearing, make 


oral arguments, and submit final orders further implicates Florida Bar rules and the 


constitutional integrity of this court. 
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RELIEF REQUESTED 


Plaintiff respectfully moves this Court to: 


 


STRIKE all post-dismissal filings submitted after May 14, 2025; 


 


BAR Defendant’s attorneys from further action under this case number; 


 


DECLARE the dismissal order void due to procedural and constitutional defects; 


 


FORWARD this matter to the Florida Bar and Judicial Qualifications Commission for 


review of potential ethical and judicial misconduct; 


 


ENTER any further relief necessary to preserve Plaintiff’s rights under Florida law and 


the U.S. Constitution. 


Respectfully Submitted,  


Marcio Sousa Sales 


Plaintiff, Pro Se 


160 W Camino Real, 102 


Boca Raton, FL 33432 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 
 


I hereby certify that on this July 26, 2025, I filed the AMENDED MOTION TO 


STRIKE IMPROPER POST-DISMISSAL FILINGS, BAR FURTHER ACTION IN 


CLOSED CASE, AND NOTICE OF FEDERAL ESCALATION AND JUDICIAL 


MISCONDUCT with the Clerk of the Court using the United States Certified Postal 


service system, which will send notification of such filing to the following defendant 


indicated below. 


Additionally, I certify that I served a copy of the foregoing document via E-mail to 


Seth R Keller attorney for Andrade.    


 
 
 
 


 
Marcio Sousa Sales 


Plaintiff, Pro Se 
160 W Camino Real, 102 


Boca Raton, FL 33432 







EXHIBIT E
Letter to Defendant Antonio De Andrade Regarding Wrongful Lawsuit and Improper Use 
of § 57.105


This exhibit consists of a formal letter addressed to Defendant Antonio De Andrade, sent 
on behalf of Plaintiff Marcio Sousa Sales, outlining the wrongful nature of the initial lawsuit 
filed by Defendant against Mr. Sales. The letter notifies Defendant that he improperly sued 
the wrong party—Mr. Sales individually instead of the LLC that serviced his vehicle—and 
explains that the new lawsuit seeks damages for the harm caused by that legal misconduct. 
The letter further warns that Defendant’s threatened use of Fla. Stat. § 57.105 is improper 
and constitutes a continuation of the abusive litigation tactics previously engaged in by his 
former counsel. The communication reinforces the Plaintiff’s intent to pursue his claims 
and documents efforts to place the Defendant on notice prior to further proceedings.
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Subject: Clarification Regarding Improper Legal Action and 


Opportunity to Correct 


 


Dear Mr. Andrade, 


I hope this message reaches you with clarity and calm, as my intention is not 


conflict — but correction. After reviewing the legal issues raised in the prior 


litigation you brought against me, and following further discussion with 


individuals who understand the law, including an independent attorney, I believe it 


is important to write to you directly. 


I have recently been shown applicable Florida law and case precedent. Upon 


learning more, I asked for help in drafting this letter in a respectful and proper way 


— so that you are made aware of the situation from a legal standpoint and given 


the opportunity to reflect. 


What the Law Says and What Happened 


1. You Sued the Wrong Party: 


By law, when you sue a business, especially an LLC, you must sue the legal 


entity, not an individual who is not personally liable. I am not — and never 


have been — the owner or legal officer of the LLC in question. That 


company is legally owned and operated by my son, Marcio Luiz Sales Jr. 


2. I Was Tried for a Case That Was Not Mine: 


You named me in the lawsuit, but in effect, you tried a case involving my 


son’s business, not mine. This violates basic constitutional protections — I 


had no business operations in the transaction, yet I was the one forced to 


respond to it. 
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3. Even the Court Proceeded Improperly: 


During trial, the presiding judge allowed testimony and rulings on facts and 


liabilities that were unrelated to me, the named party. I was never given an 


opportunity to properly defend myself from accurate accusations — because 


none existed. This is a serious violation of due process. 


4. Legal and Financial Risks You Now Face: 


There are two appeals currently pending against you. A new lawsuit has 


also been filed against you for the improper litigation tactics used. In 


addition, formal complaints have been filed with The Florida Bar against 


your former attorney for: 


o Filing a baseless lawsuit against the wrong party; 


o Violating Rules of Professional Conduct; 


o Misusing court resources; 


o Abusing pro se litigants through unlawful § 57.105 threats. 


If these issues are brought to federal court, they will be further scrutinized, and you 


may be held liable for monetary sanctions and legal costs. 


A Final Courtesy and Suggestion 


If you truly believe your vehicle was improperly serviced, the correct action — as 


any attorney will tell you — is to file a claim against the LLC, not against me 


personally. That process involves: 


• Naming the LLC as the defendant; 


• Serving the registered agent (which is Marcio Sales Jr.); 


• Letting the court properly decide based on facts and law. 


This is how it must be done. Continuing to pursue the wrong party — when you 


have already been warned — will likely end with you paying significant legal 


costs. 
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This letter is not a threat, nor is it intended to intimidate you. It is a final, 


respectable attempt to inform you of your mistakes and give you an opportunity to 


speak with a qualified attorney before continuing a course that will harm you. 


There are public court records showing that you even asked the court to hold both 


father and son responsible, which confirms a misunderstanding of the law. That is 


why I urge you to now consult a professional — someone who will tell you the 


truth, not just take your money to continue a case that cannot succeed. 


I will pursue full justice until this matter is corrected. However, I wanted to give 


you this final opportunity to take the right path, with clarity and dignity. 


Respectfully, 


 


Marcio Luiz Sales Jr. 


22187 Aquila Street 


Boca Raton, FL 33528 


Palm Beach County, Florida 
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FORMAL BAR RESPONSE – PERSONAL COMPLAINT 


To Be Submitted by: Rogerio Scotton, Robert Scarcell, Peter Aldo and Marcio Sousa sales 


 


The Florida Bar 
Attn: ACAP – Attorney Consumer Assistance Program 
651 East Jefferson Street 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-2300 
Phone: (866) 352-0707 
 


 


Re: Curtis LeBlanc, Esq. 


Morris Shields LeBlanc, P.A. 


685 Royal Palm Beach Blvd., Suite 205 


Royal Palm Beach, FL 33411 


Phone: (561) 793-1200 


Email: info@morrisshieldsleblanc.com 


SUMMARY OF THE COMPLAINT: 


We respectfully submit this complaint to report unethical and improper conduct by 
attorney Curtis LeBlanc, who currently represents Antonio de Andrade in multiple related 
legal proceedings against Marcio Sousa Sales, all pending in Palm Beach County and the 
4th District Court of Appeal. The conduct at issue includes: 


 


1. ABUSE OF §57.105 SANCTIONS PROCESS 


Attorney Curtis LeBlanc has issued a letter titled “NOTICE OF §57.105 SAFE-HARBOR” to 
pro se litigant Marcio Sousa Sales dated July 3, 2025. This letter purports to serve as notice 
of intent to seek sanctions under Fla. Stat. § 57.105, accusing Marcio of filing a frivolous 
claim. 
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However, this letter constitutes an improper continuation of the same tactics used by a 
previous attorney (Brandon Gibson), who was involved in unauthorized practice during 
prior litigation—submitting motions and attending hearings without filing a proper Notice of 
Appearance and while misrepresenting facts to the court. After these actions were 
exposed, the original legal team abruptly withdrew. 


 


Mr. LeBlanc is now attempting to revive that exact line of attack—relying on the prior invalid 
proceedings as grounds to assert that Marcio’s newly filed complaint is frivolous. He 
ignores critical procedural history, including that: 


 


Marcio was never properly tried in the original small claims case (50-2023-SC-011007). 


 


His son (owner of the LLC) was the person who attended the hearing. 


 


A judgment was improperly entered against Marcio without affording him an opportunity to 
defend himself, a clear constitutional violation. 


 


The prior judgment and dismissal were never adjudicated on the merits as to Marcio 
himself. 


 


Rather than recognize this due process concern, Mr. LeBlanc falsely asserts that Marcio’s 
claims are legally barred. The letter is not only misleading—it is a threat intended to 
intimidate a pro se litigant and prevent the court from hearing the case on the merits. 


 


2. IMPROPER STATEMENTS IN MOTION FOR EXTENSION 


Additionally, Mr. LeBlanc previously filed a Motion for Extension of Time in the same case 
(50-2025-CA-005676), where he improperly inserted prejudicial, argumentative, and 
misleading statements attacking Marcio’s credibility and case merit. 


 


These statements had no relevance to the extension request. 
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The motion included assertions not supported by evidence, and falsely implied the case 
had been dismissed with prejudice or fully litigated before. 


 


It echoed the same fraudulent narrative used by Mr. Gibson, which had already been 
discredited. 


 


We consider this filing a direct violation of the Rules Regulating The Florida Bar, including: 


 


Rule 4-3.1 (Meritorious Claims and Contentions) – Filing contentions not grounded in fact 
or law. 


 


Rule 4-3.3 (Candor Toward the Tribunal) – Misrepresenting material facts to the court. 


 


Rule 4-4.4(a) (Respect for Rights of Third Persons) – Using legal procedures to harass or 
burden a pro se party. 


 


Rule 4-8.4(d) – Engaging in conduct prejudicial to the administration of justice. 


 


3. ABUSE OF PROCESS & INTIMIDATION OF PRO SE LITIGANT 


We believe that this pattern of behavior is designed to chill the constitutional rights of Mr. 
Marcio Sousa Sales to defend himself and to pursue redress of grievances in a court of law. 


 


Our involvement in assisting Mr. Sales is strictly limited to language assistance, formatting, 
and procedural guidance. Mr. Sales, at all times, remains a pro se litigant acting 
independently. We are not attorneys of record, and we state this for full disclosure. 
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RELIEF REQUESTED: 


We ask that the Florida Bar investigate: 


 


Whether Mr. Curtis LeBlanc has violated professional conduct rules by recycling improper 
and false narratives previously used by an attorney not properly before the court. 


 


Whether his conduct in filing a motion for extension and §57.105 letter is an attempt to 
harass a pro se litigant, hinder access to justice, and circumvent judicial oversight of 
constitutional violations already raised on appeal. 


 


ATTACHMENTS & EVIDENCE: 


We are prepared to submit, upon request: 
 
The §57.105 Safe Harbor Letter dated July 3, 2025. 
 
The envelope showing USPS tracking and delivery. 
 
The Motion for Extension filed by Mr. LeBlanc. 
 


 


 


 


 


Rogerio Scotton, Robert Scarcell  Peter Aldo & Marcio Sousa Sales 


160 W camino Real # 102 


Boca Raton, Florida 33432 
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constitutional violation: no person should be held liable in a civil trial without being properly
served, joined, and given the opportunity to defend himself under due process.
 
See:
 
Caprio v. State, 837 So. 2d 507 (Fla. 4th DCA 2003) – "[A] judgment entered against a person
who was never made a party to the action is void."
 
Ratliff v. Bucher, 674 So. 2d 784 (Fla. 1st DCA 1996) – "Service of process is essential to
jurisdiction and due process."
 
Fla. Stat. § 605.0304(1)(a) – “[A] member or manager is not personally liable, directly or
indirectly, for a debt, obligation, or other liability of the company.”
 
You know this. You’ve read the law. And yet, you deliberately chose to submit a motion and
threatening letter mischaracterizing the new lawsuit, ignoring the procedural misconduct that
plagued the prior action, and attempting to extort a withdrawal based on threats of sanctions.
 
Your client, Antonio de Andrade, initiated this mess. He sued the wrong party, misled the court,
and reaped the benefit of a void judgment. Now, instead of advising him to resolve the matter
responsibly, you’ve aligned yourself with tactics that echo fraud upon the court. And for what?
To pay your office rent? To appear powerful before a paying client?
 
Mr. Marcio has already informed you that he will not surrender his constitutional rights to
appease any threats – not from you, not from anyone. If your hope is to intimidate a pro se
litigant into silence, you’ve picked the wrong person. He is prepared to litigate this matter all
the way to the Florida Supreme Court, if needed. Or federal Court for that matter.
 
We, as citizens concerned with systemic legal abuse, will not stop exposing these patterns.
Your actions are now the subject of public interest. A blog post and press release are being
distributed under Legal Help 4 You, documenting this incident and naming you specifically for
your participation in what we believe to be unethical conduct. You are already on “Strike Two.”
A formal Florida Bar complaint is being filed this week. And more may follow. 
https://legalhelp4y.com/legal-h4y-blog/f/%F0%9F%9A%A8-%E2%80%9Cthe-retainer-
parade%E2%80%9D
 
Respectfully,
 

https://legalhelp4y.com/legal-h4y-blog/f/%F0%9F%9A%A8-%E2%80%9Cthe-retainer-parade%E2%80%9D
https://legalhelp4y.com/legal-h4y-blog/f/%F0%9F%9A%A8-%E2%80%9Cthe-retainer-parade%E2%80%9D


Roger Scotton-Co Owner/Director
Legal Help 4 You
160 Camino real #102
Boca Raton, FL 33432
rs@legalhelp4y.com
+1 (786) 588-1202
+55 (21) 97249-3440
Nothing in this message should be interpreted as a digital or electronic signature that can
be used to form, execute, document, agree to, enter into, accept or authenticate a
contract or other legal document. This electronic communication, and any files included
in this communication, may contain confidential information that is legally privileged and
confidential. If you are not the intended recipient, or a person responsible for delivering it
to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying,
distribution, or use of any of the information contained in or attached to this
transmission is STRICTLY PROHIBITED. If you have received this in error, please
immediately notify us by return e-mail, fax and/or telephone and destroy this original
transmission and its attachments without reading or saving in any manner. Thank you.
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